
City of Mora 
Kanabec County, Minnesota 

Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

Mora City Hall 
101 Lake St. S 

Mora, MN 55051 

Tuesday, October 17, 2023 6:30 PM Mora City Hall 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call
3. Adopt Agenda addition of items 8c and 8d

4. Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon by 
one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consent agenda.) 
a. Meeting Minutes - September 19, 2023
b. Claims - September 2023
c. Special Event permit- Dala Dazzle
d. Restricted Donations – Resolution No. 2023-1021
e. Offer of Employment – Jeffrey Quale Heavy Equipment Operator
f. Conditional Use Permit – Solar - Resolution No. 2023-1022
g. Tobacco License – Family Dollar
h. 3.2 Off Sale License – Family Dollar

5. Open Forum (Individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen
(15)  minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action 
on items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

6. Special Business
a. Fire Relief Association Audit Update

7. Public Hearings
a. None

8. New Business
a. Airport Taxilane Pay Request #1
b. VOTER Account Agreement Kanabec County Resolution No. 2023-1023
c. Mora Municipal Airport Grant - Triggering Event Master Plan Resolution No. 2023-1024
d. Permit Fees - Veteran Memorial American Legion Post #201

9. Old Business
a. 9th Street Turn Lane Update – SEH
b. Snake River Trail Connection Update
c. Dual Role Employee, MN Wage Theft, and FLSA

10. Communications
a. KCSO Monthly Report – September 2023
b. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

11. Reports
a. City Administrator
b. Councilmember Anderson
c. Councilmember Broekemeier
d. Councilmember Shepard
e. Councilmember Youngquist
f. Mayor Mathison

12. Adjournment





City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 19, 2023 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Jake Mathison called to order the regular meeting of the 
Mora City Council at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM 
 

2. Roll Call: Mayor Mathison, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Kyle Shepard, Sadie Broekemeier 
and Dave Youngquist. 
 
Staff Present: Glenn Anderson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services 
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Mandi Yoder Human Resources, Community 
Development Director Kirsten Faurie and Kelly Christianson Accountant. 
 

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried 
to adopt the agenda with correction to item 8a noting the spelling as Rowland Road, item 9b 
would be the Airport Taxi lane Reconstruction Contract Supplemental Conditions and item 9f 
would be the 2024 Preliminary Budget / Tax levy Resolution No. 2023-922. 
 

4. Consent Agenda: MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously 
carried to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2023 
b. Regular Meeting Minutes – September 5, 2023 
c. Claims – August 2023 
d. Accept Donations Resolution No. 2023-921 
e. Gambling Permit – Pheasants Forever 
f. Massage Therapy Business License – Asolare Yoga & Wellness LLC 
g. Assessment Contract – Kanabec County Assessor’s Office 
h. Mobile Food Unit - Coffee on Wheels 
i. Resignation - Mechanic 

 
5. Open Forum:  Barb Rische of 960 Maple Avenue East asked the Council for an update on the 

commercial vehicle traffic on her street. She stated there were two signs placed on each end of 
Maple Aveunue East and that one semi-truck had traveled down her street. Reich explained that 
between September 13-18 there were four semi-trucks that had traveled through to the 
industrial park. Mathison explained that the Planning Commission had reviewed the concern 
and the potential of an ordinance and this would be discussed later at the City Council meeting. 
 
Rische brought up additional concern with the cleanup activity and scrap yard on Maple Avenue 
East and an unattended fire that the fire department responded to. Glenn Anderson explained 
he had been in contact with the property owner and that the contract for cleanup would 
conclude within the month. 
 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 19, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 
 

6. Special Business:  
a.    Schooly Mitchell Agreement Proposal- Nick Vetrano of School Mitchell presented to the 

Council services that could assist with cost savings. He further explained the business 
would review service agreements in place with the city to ensure there were no billing 
errors, reviewed the whole marketplace and ensured the best cost from vendors was 
presented. Vetrano explained that there was no cost to the city, and that 50% of the 
savings the city received would be the payment for Schooly Mitchell. It was further 
explained that the savings for the City of Mora had been negotiated so that 30% of the 
savings could be paid if the Council were to move forward with the proposal. MOTION 
made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to table the 
discussion for the proposal with Schooly Mitchell. Broekemeier suggested that the City 
obtain references from other cities.  
 

b.    Policy Review: Mandi Yoder explained that the City was recruiting a Heavy Equipment 
Operator and that there had been two applicants for the position who were also in the 
Mora Area Fire Department. Yoder explained the past practice for employees who 
wanted to become firefighters and the challenges faced with Fair Labor and Standards 
Act overtime laws, and Minnesota Wage Theft law. The past practice did not allow 
hourly non-exempt employees to be on the Fire Department due to the unknown 
impact to the City and Fire Department’s Budget and adherence to Labor Laws. Yoder 
further explained that there had been interest amongst staff members within the past 
three years and the employee was not able to become a firefighter due to the impact 
and if the city were to permit the dual employment now, it could be perceived as 
favoritism, decrease morale and possible claims of discrimination. Councilmember 
Anderson noted that it could also improve morale by showing the changes within the 
city. Kohlgraf explained that there were other Cities who had full time employees serve 
as firefighters, however, was unable to obtain information. 
 
It was further suggested that if the Council were interested in allowing full time non-
exempt staff as firefighters, the change could be explained that the previous policy was 
not the direction the Council wanted to forward with in the future with new Council.  
 
Further discussion on the challenges that could be faced with that dual employees with 
Public Works were discussed and that it could create a conflict if there were a fire call 
and staff were working on a project or long extended hours operating heavy equipment. 
The Council also discussed the benefit it had to the employees and the community by 
having them serve on the fire department. 
 
The consensus amongst the City Council was to table the discussion and directed staff to 
look at former administration notes for hourly employee and the being members of the 
fire department, along with reaching out to other cities to see how the dual employees 
were paid.  
 



City Council Meeting Minutes 
September 19, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 

7. Public Hearings:  There were no public hearings.

8. New Business:
a. Land Purchase Rowland Road: Glenn Anderson brought forward a prospective land

purchase along Rowland Road. The item was tabled for discussion due to the property
owner not being in attendance.

b. Schubert & Hoey Sign Lease: The Council reviewed the lease agreement with Schubert
& Hoey Outdoor Advertising, Inc. for a sign on Highway 23 East, on city property. The
Council discussed the terms of the lease agreement and questioned whether the rate
was sufficient. The lease term outlined a ten-year term. The first five years rent would
increase to $325.50 annually and increase an additional 5% following. The consensus
was that the lease term be shortened to five years at the new rate of $325.50 and
review later at the end of the lease. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson
and unanimously carried to approve the lease for five years and reflect an annual lease
amount of $325.50.

9. Old Business:
a. 100 Union Street S Building Lease – Vasaloppet USA: The City Council approved the

lease agreement with Vasaloppet, Inc. for the building space at 100 Union Street S. The
term of the new lease will be one year term with dates beginning 9/1/2023-8/31/2024.
The rent will be $220.50 per month for the term of the lease. MOTION made by
Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to approve the 100 Union
Street S Building Lease – Vasaloppet USA.

b. Airport Taxilane Reconstruction Contract Supplemental Conditions: The City Council
approved the updated language per the recommendations of the City Attorney so the
project could move forward. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Youngquist, and
unanimously approved to approve the Airport Taxilane Reconstruction contract
Supplemental Conditions.

c. Planning Commission Recommendation East Maple Avenue:  Community Development
Director Kirsten Faurie brought forward the recommendation of the Planning
Commission regarding the commercial vehicle traffic on East Maple Avenue. Per the
Planning Commission, the consensus was that the goal could be met through other
means to reduce the volume of commercial vehicle traffic without drafting an Ordinance
and re-evaluate if the goal had not been met. The Planning Commission had three
recommendations: to install truck route signs to encourage commercial trucks to travel
through Highway 23 and Highways 65 towards the industrial park; have City staff reach
out to Commercial Plastics change their mailing address to Industrial Road versus Maple
Avenue; staff communicate directly to the Industrial Park businesses.

It was suggested that the Post Office reach out for an address change, Kohlgraf
explained that Commercial Plastics needed to initiate the change, not the City. He



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 19, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 
 

further explained he had reached out to Commercial Plastics and was waiting for a 
response, but the contact was out of the office for a short period of time and waiting for 
a reply.  
 
MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously carried to 
approve the Planning Commission’s recommendation to reduce commercial vehicle 
traffic on Maple Avenue East.  
 

d.    Project Updates memo -SEH: Kohlgraf provided an update on 9th Street Turn Lane. The 
contractors were behind schedule on the sub grading and there would be a meeting the 
following week. The Snake Rive Bridge Trail Connection construction would start at the 
beginning of October. The Outlet Pipe construction was planned for 2025 and there 
were no further updates. Utility extension would take place for Recovering Hope 
Treatment Center and permits were completed for the water and sewer from the state 
of Minnesota.  
 

e.    AFP #1 for the Turn Lane Project- The City Council reviewed payment request #1 for 
ACM Contracting for the 9th Street Turn Lane Project. MOTION made by Shepard, 
seconded by Youngquist, and carried to approve pay request #1 for $79,676.89.  
 

f.    2024 Preliminary Budget Proposal:  Administrative Services Director Segelstrom 
presented the 2024 Preliminary Budget. The budget reflected a 22.12% increase over 
the 2023 tax levy. She explained this was the preliminary budget and the City must 
certify by the end of September. Significant changes to the expenditure included 
removal of Pickleball Court, decrease in the proposed City Council wage increase by 50% 
and reinstated budget cuts for street department maintenance- labor and materials. 
Changes to the Capital Improvement Plan remove Pickleball Court from 2024 CIP  
 
The Council discussed the levy increase and the impact on households in the City and 
the increases that occurred from one year to the next and questioned the benefit to the 
taxpayers. It was further discussed that the household impact for a home valued at 
$250,000 was an annual increase of $118.00. Shepard explained that previous Council’s 
had eliminated the Capital Improvement Plan, cut the budget and the costs have 
increased over time.  
 
Councilmember Anderson expressed concern with the pre-liminary budget, and that the 
reduction was not significant enough. Broekemeier explained the burden the levy would 
have on taxpayers and that many people and businesses were catching up from the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
MOTION made by Shepard seconded by Youngquist, opposed by Anderson and 
Broekemeier and carried 3-2 to approve the following Resolution: 
 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 19, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 
 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
       APPROVING THE 2024 PRELIMINARY TAX LEVY 
       (see attached resolution) 
 

10. Communications: 
The City Council reviewed the monthly communications.  
 

a.   KCSO Monthly Report – August 
b.   Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
c.   Airport board Meeting Minutes 
d.   Park Board Meeting Minutes 
e.   Annual Top 10 Employers Survey 

 
11. Boards and Commission Reports 

a.    City Administrator: Noted that Building Official Christensen was now licensed for 
commercial inspection.  

b.    Councilmember Anderson: Nothing new to report. 
c.    Councilmember Broekemeier: Heard good things about the Fly-In.  
d.    Councilmember Shepard: Thanked staff for working on the budget and enjoyed the 

budget committee meetings. 
e.    Councilmember Youngquist: Discussed the learning process with the budget committee 

and noted that staff has done everything to be reasonable with the budget. 
f.    Mayor Mathison: Nothing new to report. 

 
12. Adjournment:  MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously carried to 

adjourn the meeting at 8:31 p.m. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

______________________________________ 
City Clerk 













































Item No. 4c 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: November 17, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie, Activities and Recreation Coordinator  
RE: Public Property Use Permit Request Amendment – Dala Dazzle 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Mora Area Chamber of Commerce will be holding the Dala Dazzle event on Saturday, November 25, 2023. 
 
They are requesting to close Union Street from Forest Avenue to Maple Avenue and an additional 20’ into 
each Railroad Avenue NE, NW, AND SW from 12:00pm until 8:00pm.  They are requesting to hold a parade as 
well.  No other streets will be closed for the parade.   
 
This is an annual event sponsored by the Mora Area Chamber of Commerce and other volunteers, including 
the Mora Area Fire Department.      
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

• The Chamber should notify the County of the street closure. Traffic control devices will be provided by 
Kanabec County and will be placed as directed and removed from the streets at the end of the event. 

• There must be adult supervision by the fire rings until they are extinguished.  The fire department no 
longer has fire rings available.   

• There will be a KCSO deputy escort for the parade at Maple Ave depending on availability. 
• Any food/drink vendors selling goods must have complete registration/application through the City of 

Mora prior to event.  MHS students are exempt from the requirements.  
• All garbage to be picked up by host of event after event has ended.  
• Certificate of Liability Insurance must be submitted to staff prior to event taking place.     

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the amended Dala Dazzle Public Property Use Permit with the above conditions. 
 
 
Attachments 
Special Event Permit Application 
Listing of Activities 
Map of Road Closure 
Parade Route 

























CITY OF MORA 
MORA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 

 
101 Lake Street South 
Mora, MN  55051-1588  

 

ci.mora.mn.us 
320.679.1511      Fax 320.679.3862          320.679.1451 
 

The City of Mora is an Equal Opportunity Provider/Employer 
For TDD, call 711 

 
October 11, 2023 
 
 
 
Jeffrey S Quale 
26938 Brook Park Rd 
Brook Park, MN  55007 
 
RE:  Conditional Offer of Employment 
 
Dear Mr. Quale: 
 
Congratulations! On behalf of the City of Mora and Mora Municipal Utilities, I am pleased to offer 
you the position of Heavy Equipment Operator, for which you applied. This offer is conditional 
upon successful completion of a background check.  
Below are some of the details of this conditional offer for your information:  
 Supervisor.  In this position you will report directly to Joe Kohlgraf, Public Works 

Director. His contact information is 612-390-8217 and joe.kohlgraf@cityofmora.com.  
 Start Date.  We will set a tentative start date for Monday, October 30, 2023, at 8:00am. 

Please report directly to City Hall to meet with Mandi Yoder, Human Resources.   
 Background Investigation.  Enclosed you will find a background investigation packet.  

Complete and return the forms to city hall.  Forms can be notarized at city hall at no 
charge to you.  You will be contacted when the background investigation is complete.  If 
satisfactory, you will be instructed to come to city hall to complete the new hire 
paperwork. 

 Compensation and Benefits.  Your hourly wage will be $27.05, which is Grade 8, Step 
C of the 2023 consolidated salary schedule for this position. You will be eligible for wage 
increases per the city’s salary schedule, generally upon completion of probation and on 
your anniversary date thereafter. A copy of the City of Mora personnel policy and the 
AFSCME collective bargaining agreement will be provided at your orientation. This 
position is eligible for the PERA retirement program and full-time benefits. 

 Probationary Period.  You will serve a six-month probationary period. During this 
period, you will be evaluated as to your suitability for the position. 

 Status/Hours.  This position is classified as regular, full-time, FLSA non-exempt. Hours 
of work are based on employer needs and are generally Monday through Friday 7:00am 
to 3:30pm. This position requires that you be available at any hour for snow plowing or 
other emergency work unless a leave of absence is approved beforehand. 
 
 



Other benefits and conditions of employment are explained in the city’s personnel policy. 
Please acknowledge your acceptance of this conditional offer in writing by signing below and 
signing the acknowledgment portion of the job description, and return it to City Hall, HR, by 
Friday, October 6, 2023. If you have any questions, please contact Mandi Yoder, Human 
Resources, at (320) 225-4804 or by email at m.yoder@cityofmora.com 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Joe Kohlgraf 
Public Works Director 
 
 
By signing below, I acknowledge I have received the foregoing information regarding my 
employment offer and related pay and benefits provided in accordance with Minnesota 
Statutes Sec. 181.032. I understand that City of Mora employment is not for a specific 
term and can be terminated by me or by the City of Mora at any time for any reason, with 
or without cause. 
 
 
             
Name - PRINTED      Date 
 
         
Name - SIGNED  
 
 
RETURN SIGNED COPY TO: 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE 
CITY OF MORA 
101 LAKE STREET SOUTH 
MORA, MN 55051 
 



Item No. 4e 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 17, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
RE: Accept Restricted Donations  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has received the following donations: 
 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: 
North Country Bottle Shop  $266.00 
  
  
  

  
As required by MN State Statute, restricted donations must be officially accepted by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept donations by approving Resolution 2023-1021 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 2023-1021 



Resolution No. 2023-1021 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
ACCEPTING RESTRICTED DONATIONS  

WHEREAS, the City of Mora is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal property 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is specifically 
authorized to accept gifts. 

WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set forth 
below to the city, and the terms or conditions of the donations, if any, are as follows: 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 

North Country Bottle Shop $266.00 MN Municipal Beverage Association – 
4th Annual Fundraiser 

WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as allowed 
by law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
that: 

1. The donations described above are accepted and shall be used to establish and/or operate
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law.

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the city’s
receipt of the donor’s donation.

The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member ____________________. 

Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 17th day of October 2023. 

 ______________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Jake Mathison, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
 Natasha Segelstrom, City Clerk/Treasurer 



Item No. 4f 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 17th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE: Heavy Equipment Operator New Hire/Replacement 

SUMMARY 
 Ne Hire for the replacement for the Heavy Equipment Operator (HEO) for the City of Mora Street 
Department. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 With the current transfer of a staff member to the water/wastewater utilities department, the street 
department is down a staff member.  Advertising and interviews with current staff and council 
representation for this position have been completed.  A candidate has been chosen and this 
candidate has accepted an offer.  We recommend that staff agree to the hiring of Jeffrey Quale for 
HEO.  The starting wage will be Grade 8, Step C, $27.05 and after successful probation completion 
move to Grade 8, Step D, $27.72. This hire is needed to fill an existing position. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
Accept employee hire recommendation of Jeffrey Quale, at Grade 8, Step C, $27.05 
Do not accept recommendation at this time.  This position will be left open. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends Hiring of Jeffrey Quale for the HEO position. 

Attachments; Letter of acceptance 





Item No. 4g 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 17, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Solar Energy System – 413 Cardinal St.  

SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider granting a conditional use permit to allow a Solar Energy System in the R-1 Single 
Family Residential District at 413 Cardinal St. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Camila Rodriguez of Solcius, applicant, and Robert Gilbert, property owner, have applied for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family 
Residential District. The subject site is located at 413 Cardinal St. The proposed project includes the 
installation of a 3.8kW ac solar array, including nine photovoltaic modules mounted on house roof.  

The Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy systems, including solar energy systems, which 
have a positive impact on energy conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. The Zoning 
Code provides general standards for Solar Energy Systems and the proposed system was reviewed by city and 
utility staff as well as the city’s electrical engineer to determine compliance with these standards. Staff finds 
that the proposed system complies with the general standards and no concerns have been identified.  

The property owner is required by the Zoning Code and the state to enter into an interconnection agreement 
with the local electric utility company (MMU) and obtain a building permit prior to installation. The applicant 
submitted an interconnection application and the city’s electrical engineer has approved the application with 
conditions. These conditions have been incorporated into the draft resolution. 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing for this request at its Oct. 2, 2023 meeting. No members 
of the public expressed opposition to the proposed CUP. The commission recommended approval. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Approve the CUP with conditions as presented or amended.
2. Deny the CUP, providing specific reasons for denial for the written record.
3. Table the request for further consideration. The review period for this request expires Nov. 11, 2023; if the 

Council tables the request, staff will exercise the city’s right to extend the review period by 60 days.

RECOMMENDATION 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 2023-1022 as presented. 

Attachments 
Site plan showing placement of proposed Solar Energy System 
Proposed Resolution No. 2023-1022 





AZIMUTH 90

120

150
180

210

240

270

300

330
0

30

60

W E

S

N

80
70

50
4O

2010350

320
310

290
280

260
250

230
220

200 190 170 160

140
130

110
100

340

ROOF A

41
3 

Ca
rd

in
al

 S
t

17'-2"

46'-3"
5 6

789

1

1

1'-6"
TYP.

2

3

4

STAMP!

 FIRE SETBACKS 3'

TOTAL ROOF AREA: 2282 sq ft
PROPOSED SOLAR AREA:  209.06 sq ft

PROPOSED SOLAR WEIGHT: 606.26 lb
PROPOSED % COVERAGE: 9.2%

AZIMUTH AND TILT TABLE

ROOF AZIMUTH ROOF TILT MODULE
COUNT ROOF TYPE SOLAR

ACCESS
A 180 23 9 ASPHALT SHINGLE

APTOS DNA-120-BF10-440W TOTAL: 9
SOLAREDGE SE3800H-US TOTAL:1

REGIONAL OFFICE
SOLCIUS, LLC

9124 GRAND AVE S
SUITE 105

MINNEAPOLIS, MN
55420

(844) 357-2258

CUSTOMER

ROBERT GILBERT
413 CARDINAL ST

MORA, MN, 55051

UTILITY

MORA-SAN MIGUEL
ELECTRIC CORPORATION

SOLCIUS PROJECT #

P-275303-23

FINANCER

DIVIDEND

JURISDICTION

MORA

DESIGNER

PERMIT DESIGNER 2

SYSTEM SIZE
(N) DC SIZE: 3.96KW
(N) AC SIZE: 3.8KW

VERSION
1.3

DATE

SCALE

SHEET TITLE

SHEET #

6/23/2023

PV-2

EQUIPMENT LABELS

① ROOF ACCESS

② JUNCTION BOX

③ PV MODULES EACH W/ OPTIMIZERS

④ CONDUIT RUN

⑤ BILLING METER

⑥ MAIN SERVICE PANEL

⑦  NON-FUSED AC DISCONNECT

⑧ PRODUCTION METER

⑨ INVERTER & RAPID SHUTDOWN

1" = 8.000001'

SITE PLAN





RESOLUTION NO. 2023-1022 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA, RECOMMENDING 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING A 

SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM TO BE LOCATED IN THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT  
AS REQUESTED BY CAMILLA RODRIGUEZ, SOLCIUS LLC 

WHEREAS, Camila Rodriguez of Solcius, applicant, and Robert Gilbert, property owner, submitted an 
application dated received July 31, 2023 and considered complete on September 12, 2023 for a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property is located at 413 Cardinal St., and 

WHEREAS, the subject property is legally described as:  

PID 22-07600-00 
Lot Two (2), Block One (1), Fox Run 2nd Addition, Kanabec County, Minnesota. 

WHEREAS, notice was provided and on Sept. 18, 2023, the Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing regarding this application on Oct. 2, 2023, at which it heard from the Community Development 
Director and invited members of the public to comment; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the request and the Planning Commission’s recommendation at 
its October 17, 2023 meeting and made the following finding as required by Zoning Code §150.036 
Conditional Uses, Subd. E Standards: 

Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 
and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed use of Solar Energy System as a Conditional Use 
within the R-1 Single Family Residential District and the proposed use complies with all 
district regulations. Further, the Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy 
systems, including solar energy systems, which have a positive impact on energy 
conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. Therefore, the proposed 
use is consistent with the intent of the Zoning Code and R-1 Single Family Residential 
District.  

Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The city’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2021, does not address the use of 

Solar Energy Systems. However, the proposed use aligns with the Comprehensive Plan 
goals to: improve and protect the physical environment of the community as a setting 
for human activities, making it more attractive, healthful and efficient; and maintain a 
high level of public services in an efficient manner that minimizes the tax burden on 
Mora’s residents, businesses and industries.  



Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 Given that the proposed Solar Energy System is a flush-mount system located on a 

structure roof, the proposed use will have no impact on traffic and will not cause undue 
traffic congestion in the general area.  

 
Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 

facilities and services. 
Finding #4 The property is currently served by municipal water, sewer, and electric service; and, the 

property is adequately served by all other public services, including public streets and 
emergency services. 

 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 The proposed Solar Energy System is a flush-mount system located on a structure roof 

with little to no visibility from adjacent properties. There is no evidence to suggest that 
the appearance will have an adverse effect upon adjacent properties. 

 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 The proposed use will have little to no visibility from adjacent residential properties. The 
city believes that the proposed use is compatible by virtue of its roof-top location. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mora, MN hereby approves the 
Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Solar Energy System shall be installed in conformance with the plans and specifications dated 

received September 12, 2023. Any major deviation, as determined by city staff, shall require further 
review and approval by the City Council. 

2. The property owner is required to enter into an interconnection agreement with Mora Municipal 
Utilities. 

3. The applicant and/or property owner shall coordinate with Mora Municipal Utilities electric utility 
staff regarding: 

a. Installation and location of required visible, lockable disconnect and metering equipment 
and associated labeling. 

b. Verification of inverter equipment and related protection per submittal. 
c. Acceptance testing of the installation prior to commercial operation. 

4. A service / meter upgrade may be necessary. The expense of equipment and labor shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

5. The Solar Energy System shall be certified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. and comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Codes and Minnesota State Building Codes. 

6. Issuance of a building permit is required prior to installation. The manufacturer’s specifications must 
be submitted with the building permit application. 



7. The manufacturer’s specifications must be on-site and available to city and utility staff at all times
during installation and inspections.

8. If the property owner re-roofs the structure at any time while the solar panels are located on the
roof, the color of the new roofing materials must be the same as or similar to the color of the solar
panels.

9. This Conditional Use Permit shall be utilized and all conditions shall be met within one year of
recording or the Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void.

10. If the Solar Energy System becomes inoperable for 12 successive months, the system shall be
deemed abandoned and a public nuisance. The property owner shall remove the abandoned system
and all associated equipment at their expense after obtaining a demolition permit. Removal must be
completed within 90 days following the 12 month period.

The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for approval by Council Member ___________ and 
seconded by Council Member ____________. 

Voting for the resolution: .......................  
Voting against the resolution:.................  
Abstained from voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 17th day of October, 2023. 

_______________________________ ATTEST: _____________________________ 
Jake Mathison, Mayor   Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 





Item No. 4h 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 17, 2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Natasha Segelstrom City Clerk  
RE: Consideration of Tobacco Business License – Family Dollar 
 Consideration of 3.2 Beer Off-Sale License – Family Dollar 
 
 
SUMMARY 
The City Council will review for consideration to approve a tobacco business license 
application submitted by Family Dollar. 
 
 
OPTIONS IMPACTS 
Consideration to approve the tobacco business license application as presented.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Staff recommends the City Council make a motion to approve the Tobacco Business 
License and 3.2 Beer Off-Sale License submitted by Family Dollar contingent upon 
satisfactory conditions of City Code Title XI, Chapter 114.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Business License Application 













Item No. 6a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 17, 2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Glenn Anderson, City Administrator  
RE: Fire Relief Association Audit Update 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Mora Area Fire Department’s Fire Relief Association will provide an update on their annual 
audit.  
 
 





Item No. 8a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 10th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE: Airport Taxi Lane Pay Application 1 

SUMMARY 
 Acceptance airport taxi lane pay request #1. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport Taxi Lane repair was started about 2 weeks ago and is completed.  
Douglas Kerr underground has submitted their first pay application.  SEH has submitted this pay 
application for Douglas-Kerr underground for work completed.  Currently, staff agrees with the work 
as presented and agrees to the amounts proposed for payment.  Staff also notes that this project has 
been completed. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
Accept pay application #1 for Douglas-Kerr Underground in the amount of $256,045.71.  This is a budgeted item 
in the CIP. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends moving forward with the acceptance of Pay Application 1 from Douglas-Kerr Underground 
in the amount of $256.045.71. 

Attachments; SEH Application for Payment for Douglas-Kerr Underground 









jjorgenson
Image

jjorgenson
Text Box
10/10/2023



Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date October 17, 2023 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
RE VOTER Account 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will review and approve the Voting Operations, Technology, & Election Resources (VOTER) 
Account 

BACKGROUND 
Kanabec County Auditor’s Office oversees the elections and reporting requirements on behalf of the 
townships and municipalities within Kanabec County.  

 On July 20, the Office of the Secretary of State completed the electronic transfer of $1.25 million in electronic 
payments to counties for the Voting Operations, Technology, & Election Resources (VOTER) Account.  

The allocated amount for the City of Mora is $293.56. 

The intent of the VOTER Account Funds is to assist with costs directly related to election administration such as 
equipment; hardware or software; cybersecurity; security-related infrastructure; capital improvements to 
improve access to polling places for individuals with disabilities, staff costs for election administration; printing 
publication; postage; programming etc.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Due to Kanabec County pays for all the maintenance of election equipment, recommended action is to agree 
to allow Kanabec County to retain all VOTER Account Funds received. 

MOTION to approve Resolution 2023-1022 Voting Operations, Technology, & Election Resources (VOTER) 
Account Agreement with Kanabec County. 

Attachment:  
Office of the Secretary of State VOTER Account Overview 
VOTER Precinct Allocation 2023 
Resolution No. 2023-1023 





1 

Voting Operations, Technology, & Election Resources 
(VOTER) Account 

Minnesota Secretary of State Steve Simon 

In accordance with the requirements of 
Minnesota Statutes section 5.305 

Contents 
A. Voter Account Overview – Page 1
B. Allocations by County – Page 3
C. Example Allocation of Funding – Page 4

Section A. VOTER Account Overview 
Summary: On July 20, the Office of the Secretary of State completed the electronic transfer of $1.25 
million in electronic payments to counties for the Voting Operations, Technology, & Election 
Resources (VOTER) Account. Allocations by county are included in Section B. 

What is the VOTER Account? 
The VOTER Account is a dedicated stream of state funding for county and municipal election 
administration. Funds were approved in 2023 Session Laws, Chapter 62 (Article 1, Section 43 and 
Article 4, Section 6). $1.25 million will be allocated to counties according to the formula listed 
below. These funds will be allocated by July 20 each year, starting this year, until the law is amended 
by the legislature.  

How were the total amounts determined for each county? 
• 20 percent is allocated equally to all 87 counties
• 80 percent is allocated based on proportion of registered voters (using May 1, 2022 numbers)

What do counties need to do once the funds are received? 
Upon receipt of funds, each county must segregate the funds in a county election funding account. 
The money in the account remains in the account until it is spent for any of the authorized purposes.  

Do counties need work with cities/townships to determine how the funds will be allocated 
within the county? 
Yes. The county and the local units of government located within the county may devise their own 
agreement/formula for distributing the funds.  

If the county and a local unit of government do not agree on a distribution plan, the county must 
allocate the funds to that unit of local government as follows: 

• 50 percent is retained by the county;
• 25 percent is allocated to each local unit of government responsible for administering

absentee voting or mail voting in proportion to that unit of government's share of the county's
registered voters on May 1 for the most recent statewide general election; and

• 25 percent is allocated to cities and townships in proportion to each city and township's share
of registered voters in the county on May 1 for the most recent statewide general election

https://www.sos.state.mn.us/election-administration-campaigns/data-maps/voter-registration-counts/


2 

If an agreement is reached between the county and some cities/townships, but not all, then those 
cities/townships with whom an agreement is not reached must receive the default allocation. 

We have included an example in Section C. 

When do counties need to allocate funding to municipalities/townships? 
Counties must distribute funds to cities and townships by December 31 of each year. If an agreement 
is reached where funds are not allocated to some municipalities/townships, then this deadline would 
not apply for those jurisdictions.  

If a local unit of government administers absentee or mail voting for state elections, would they 
also receive the additional 25 percent allocation in the odd year? 
Yes. This 25 percent allocation applies every year, even if there is not an election in the jurisdiction 
for that year.  

If a local unit of government only administers AB/MB for their elections in the odd year, but not for 
state elections in the even year, they would not be entitled to the 25 percent allocation.  

It is the position of the OSS that the determination of whether a local unit of government is entitled to 
the 25 percent allocation should be made at the time that the funds are distributed by the county.  

What can the VOTER Account funds be used for? 
The funds can be used for any purpose that is directly related to election administration. The enabling 
legislation included the following categories: 

1. equipment;
2. hardware or software;
3. cybersecurity;
4. security-related infrastructure;
5. capital improvements to improve access to polling places for individuals with disabilities;
6. staff costs for election administrators, election judges, and other election officials;
7. printing and publication;
8. postage;
9. programming;
10. local match for state or federal funds; and
11. any other purpose directly related to election administration.

What are the reporting requirements? 
*Reporting requirements take effect starting in December 2024. Those first reports will cover the
previous fiscal year (July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024).

• By December 15 of each year, municipalities must report to the counties how their money
was spent.

• By December 31 of each year, the county will report to the OSS how they and their
underlying municipalities spent the funds.

• By January 31 of each year, the OSS must compile the reports from the county and submit a
summary report to the legislature that identifies expenditures by county, city, and town and
the purposes of each expenditure.

• Funds remain in the county and/or city/township account until they are expended.

The OSS is establishing a process for reporting on VOTER funds expenditures that will be in place 
well ahead of the December 2024 reporting deadlines. In the meantime, counties and municipalities 



3 

must maintain an itemized description of how their funds are being spent according to the general 
expenditure categories outlined above. Receipts and invoices should also be maintained.  

Section B.  VOTER Account Allocations by County

County 
Total County 
Allocation 

Grand Total $1,250,000.00 
Aitkin $6,027.81 
Anoka $67,239.04 
Becker $8,986.40 
Beltrami $10,629.08 
Benton $9,854.34 
Big Stone $3,761.13 
Blue Earth $13,859.40 
Brown $7,442.54 
Carlton $9,158.19 
Carver $23,139.96 
Cass $8,862.89 
Chippewa $4,899.10 
Chisago $13,480.17 
Clay $12,911.18 
Clearwater $4,321.42 
Cook $4,045.77 
Cottonwood $4,722.82 
Crow Wing $15,600.59 
Dakota $82,028.38 
Dodge $6,577.70 
Douglas $10,434.27 
Faribault $5,279.17 
Fillmore $6,610.54 
Freeborn $8,104.72 
Goodhue $11,662.34 
Grant $3,987.95 
Hennepin $229,237.64 
Houston $6,357.91 
Hubbard $6,948.79 
Isanti $10,427.25 
Itasca $11,184.03 
Jackson $4,624.86 
Kanabec $5,739.52 
Kandiyohi $10,136.17 
Kittson $3,656.44 
Koochiching $4,983.31 

Lac qui Parle $4,085.91 
Lake $4,998.75 
Lake of the Woods $3,649.14 
Le Sueur $8,110.33 
Lincoln $3,845.07 
Lyon $6,934.47 
McLeod $9,299.10 
Mahnomen $3,677.20 
Marshall $4,450.82 
Martin $6,217.85 
Meeker $7,013.63 
Mille Lacs $7,458.26 
Morrison $8,928.58 
Mower $9,008.58 
Murray $4,360.16 
Nicollet $8,689.14 
Nobles $5,623.60 
Norman $3,925.35 
Olmsted $31,118.90 
Otter Tail $13,950.62 
Pennington $5,087.74 
Pine $7,827.95 
Pipestone $4,368.86 
Polk $7,655.60 
Pope $4,975.46 
Ramsey $92,584.73 
Red Lake $3,538.82 
Redwood $5,405.21 
Renville $5,372.93 
Rice $13,775.75 
Rock $4,442.40 
Roseau $5,468.37 
Saint Louis $39,362.83 
Scott $29,698.55 
Sherburne $20,442.68 
Sibley $5,534.34 
Stearns $29,148.66 
Steele $9,264.31 
Stevens $4,341.35 



4 

Swift $4,440.44 
Todd $6,924.09 
Traverse $3,432.15 
Wabasha $6,903.03 
Wadena $5,203.67 
Waseca $5,987.95 

Washington $53,793.99 
Watonwan $4,444.37 
Wilkin $3,926.75 
Winona $10,984.45 
Wright $28,866.27 
Yellow Medicine $4,528.02 

Section C. Example Allocation According to the Default 
Formula with Partial Agreement 

County has 20,000 registered voters and receives a VOTER Account allocation of $10,000. 

# of Registered Voters Administers AB Reached agreement 
with county? 

City A 8,000 Yes No 
City B 5,000 No Yes 
Township A 4,000 No No 
Township B 3,000 No Yes 

• The county reaches an agreement with City B and Township B where those two jurisdictions
will not receive any funding and their portion of the VOTER funds will remain with the
county.

• The county cannot reach an agreement with City A and Township A. Their VOTER funds
must be determined by the default formula.

Therefore, the $10,000 would be allocated as follows: 

County City A City B Township 
A 

Township 
B 

50% percent to county $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 
25% to all municipalities / 
townships 

$625 (from 
City B) +  
$625 (from 
Township B) = 
$1,250 

$2,500/4 = 
$625 

$2,500/4 
= $625 

$2,500/4 
= $625 

$2,500/4 = 
$625 

25% to county/ city/ 
township responsible for 
administering AB, in 
proportion to share of 
registered voters in the 
county.  

12,000/20,000 
= 60 percent  

.6*$2,500 = 
$1,500 

8,000/20,000 
= 40 percent 

.4*$2,500 = 
$1,000 

Total allocation $7,750 $1,625 $625 



VOTER Account Agreement

Kanabec County 2023

Precinct Allocation - 25%

6/2/2022 

Voter 

County

25% 

Allocation

Ann Lake 270 37.96

Arthur 1194 167.87

Brunswick 887 124.70

Comfort 725 101.93

Ford 131 18.42

Grass Lake 650 91.38

Grasston 86 12.09

Haybrook 149 20.95

Hillman 286 40.21

Kanabec 528 74.23

Knife Lake 818 115.00

Kroschel 135 18.98

Mora 2088 293.56

Ogilvie 216 30.37

Peace 641 90.12

Pomroy 241 33.88

Quamba 65 9.14

Southfork 486 68.33

Whited 610 85.76

10206 1,434.88



Vo�ng Opera�ons, Technology, & Elec�on Resources 
(VOTER) Account Agreement 

BY AND BETWEEN: City of Mora, 101 Lake Street S, Mora MN 55051 
  } 

AND: Kanabec County, 317 Maple Ave E, Mora MN  55051 

WHEREAS, On July 20, 2023, the Office of the Secretary of State completed the electronic transfer of $1.25 million in
electronic payments to coun�es for the Vo�ng Opera�ons, Technology, & Elec�on Resources (VOTER) Account in 
accordance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes sec�on 5.305, and 

WHEREAS, Kanabec County is required to allocate the annual amount received based on a formula acceptable to the
county and local units of government, and  

WHEREAS, Kanabec County suggests the use of the formula suggested by the Minnesota Secretary of State’s Office as
follows: 

50% is retained by Kanabec County, 
25% allocated to the unit of government responsible for administering absentee vo�ng, which is the county in Kanabec 
County, 
25% allocated to ci�es and townships in propor�on to each city and township’s share of registered voters (on May 1 each 
year), and 

WHEREAS, Kanabec County also pays for all maintenance for all elec�on equipment u�lized by the local units of
government, 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Mora does hereby agree to allow Kanabec County

to retain all Vo�ng Opera�ons, Technology, & Elec�on Resources (VOTER) Account Funds received. 

Adopted this _______ day of ___________, 2023  by Mora City Council 

Atested and witnessed: 

____________________________________________________________________ 

City Clerk 

Resolution No. 2023-1023



Engineers  |  Architects  |  Planners  |  Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, MN 55110-3507 

651.490.2000  |  800.325.2055  |  888.908.8166 fax  |  sehinc.com 

SEH is 100% employee-owned  |  Affirmative Action–Equal Opportunity Employer 

October 12, 2023 RE: Mora, Minnesota 
Left Turn Lane on TH 65 at 9th Street 
SEH No. MORA0 169235 

Honorable Mayor and Council 
City of Mora 
101 Lake Street South 
Mora, MN  55051 

Please find enclosed Application for Payment No. 2 for the referenced project.  The quantities completed 
to date have been reviewed and we hereby recommend approval for payment to ACM LLC in the amount 
of $88,993.15.  This amount represents 45% of the work completed and material on hand, with 5% held 
for retainage.  

If approved, please sign and forward payment, along with a copy of the signed pay application, to 
ACM LLC, retaining the original for City records. 

Please don’t hesitate to contact me with any questions or comments.  Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Anderson 
Project Manager 

ah  
Enclosures 

x:\ko\m\mora0\169235\7-const-svcs\73-app-pymt\afp\afp #2\afp 2 to owner.docx 







Greg Anderson, PE

October 12, 2023



Engineers  |  Architects  |  Planners  |  Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, MN 55110-3507 
651.490.2000  |  800.325.2055  |  888.908.8166 fax  |  sehinc.com 

SEH is 100% employee-owned  |  Affirmative Action–Equal Opportunity Employer 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Greg Anderson, PE (Lic. MN) 
 
DATE: October 11, 2023 
 
RE: Project Updates 
 SEH No. MORA0 173807  14.00 
 
 
TH 65 at 9th Street – Left Turn Lane Project  

• The contractor, ACM LLC, has widened for the turn lane north of Industrial Road and plans to 
pave the first two lifts of blacktop on Friday, weather depending. 

• The widening south of Industrial Road cannot begin until the U.S. Corps of Engineers permit for 
wetland impacts is received.  Latest update from Corps is a November approval. 

• An update on the project status will be given at the council meeting. 
• The proposed completion date for the construction is late October. 

 
TH 65 Bike Trail Extension 

• The contractor, New Look Contracting, started work this week on the project. 
• The proposed completion date for the construction is November 3rd.   

 
Mora Lake Outlet Pipe/Maple Avenue Reconstruction Project – No new update 

• SEH and City staff meet with the Kanabec County Engineer in late June to discuss the project 
and schedule.   

• Kanabec County is planning their road project for 2025. 
• Kanabec County would be open to the City completing the utility replacement and lake outlet pipe 

project in 2024 as long as the road is repaved for winter. 
• Further discussion on project schedule is anticipated at the September council meeting. 

 
Rowland Road Utility Extension – Recovering Hope 

• SEH has submitted the construction plans to extend City sanitary sewer and water main for the 
water main and sanitary sewer main extensions for permit approval. 

• The work is anticipated to occur in late October. 
• The developer is working with the City on agreement for utility work and proposed new housing.   

 
 
ah 
x:\ko\m\mora0\173807\1-genl\14-corr\project update memo 2023 10 12.docx 



Item No. 9C 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: September 19, 2023   
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Mandi Yoder, Human Resources Director 
RE: Non-Exempt Employees, Paid on Call Firefighters, and Fair Labor Standards Act 
 
 
SUMMARY 
The mayor and city council will hear input from department heads related full-time, non-exempt staff 
serving a dual role as a firefighter, and the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and MN Wage Theft 
Law. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A recent full-time, non-exempt position brought about the review of past practices which prohibited 
non-exempt, full-time employees from serving as a paid-per-call firefighter.  
 
Mandi Yoder, Human Resources Director and Joe Kohlgraf, Public Works Director have researched 
and discussed the possibility at length.  
 
Some cities that have responded to information requests stated they are in short supply of firefighters 
and therefore pay overtime. Many cities did not respond. League of MN Cities stated all labor laws 
must be followed.  
 
Therefore, if a non-exempt full-time employee is permitted to work in a dual position, such as the fire 
department, overtime pay must be calculated according to the full-time position’s pay grade and step, 
as is extensively explained in both Federal and State law.  
 
At this time Joe Kohlgraf and Brett Anderson, Fire Chief, agree that budgetarily it would not be 
feasible to permit a dual role for an employee in the City’s budget or the Fire Department’s budget 
which would also impact township budgets via their service agreement invoices. 
 
OPTIONS IMPACTS 
1. Continue with the past practice of not allowing full-time, non-exempt positions the ability to serve in 
a dual role as a firefighter unless the department is able to budget for and pay the overtime.    
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
For the City Council to consider arriving at a consensus to continue with the precedent of excluding 
full-time, regular, non-exempt employees from a dual role as a firefighter unless the department can 
budget for and pay the overtime.  
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: A guide to MN’s Overtime Laws 
           Wage theft in MN: Employer Information 





Wage theft in Minnesota:  Employer information

Most Minnesota employers correctly pay their employees for the work they perform. However, there are some 
that do not. When an employer fails to pay all wages earned by employees, it is wage theft. The Minnesota 
Department of Labor and Industry (DLI) estimates more than 39,000 workers suffer from wage theft statewide 
each year. This has an impact of $11.9 million of wages owed, but not paid to Minnesota workers.

Common illegal wage-theft practices
 • Paying less than the minimum wage • Requiring or allowing work off the clock without pay

 • Not paying time-and-a-half for overtime • Not paying a final check upon separation of employment 

 • Not paying earned tips • Misclassifying employees as independent contractors

 • Deducting pay for short rest breaks • Paycheck deductions for loss of or damage to property

How to avoid committing wage theft
Employers that commit wage theft are breaking the law and undercutting competing employers, hurting 
business and revenue of those operating under the law. They are also open to additional liabilities under labor 
standards laws. The following advice will help employers avoid committing wage theft.

 • Pay your employees at least the state minimum wage. Minnesota's 2023 minimum-wage rates are $10.59  
  an hour for large employers and $8.63 an hour for small employers. For additional details about the state's  
  minimum-wage rates, visit dli.mn.gov/business/employment-practices/minimum-wage-minnesota.  
  New rates take effect Jan. 1 each year. Employers operating in Minneapolis or St. Paul should understand  
  the requirements of the minimum-wage ordinances in those cities.

 • Pay your employees for all hours worked. Employees must be paid for employer-required training and  
  for time needed to prepare to perform work, such as restocking supplies and performing safety checks. 
  If you require employees to meet at a centralized location before driving to a worksite, pay the employee  
  for the drive-time from the location to the worksite. Employers cannot require employees to remain at work  
  and "punch in" only when it gets busy, "punching out" when business gets slow.

 • Pay your hourly employees for overtime. Federal law requires most hourly employees to receive overtime 
  after working 40 hours in a workweek. Some employees are exempt from this requirement, but still need to  
  be paid overtime after 48 hours in a workweek under Minnesota law.

 • Pay your employees at least every 31 days, on a regularly scheduled payday that they are notified of in  
  advance.

 • Do not misclassify employees as independent contractors. Such misclassification not only adversely impacts  
  employees, it also creates a competitive disadvantage for employers that comply with state laws related to  
  workers' compensation, unemployment insurance and tax withholding.

Mandi Yoder
Highlight

Mandi Yoder
Highlight

Mandi Yoder
Highlight

Mandi Yoder
Highlight



Labor Standards • 443 Lafayette Road N. • St. Paul, MN  55155
651-284-5075 • 800-342-5354 • dli.mn.gov • dli.laborstandards@state.mn.us

Version 1222

 • Do not take unlawful deductions from your employees' paychecks. Deductions that generally cannot be  
  made include:  property loss or damage; cash shortages; and tool or uniform expenses.

 • Do not require your employees to pool or share tips.

Wage-claim process
Labor Standards initiates wage claims to resolve cases of unpaid wages. This process reduces the likelihood of 
further investigation, litigation or penalties, which is mutually beneficial to employers and employees.

DLI's Labor Standards is here to help

 1. Visit DLI's Employment Practices webpage at dli.mn.gov/business/employment-practices for  
  information about child labor, minimum wage, nursing mother accommodations, overtime, parental leave,  
  payroll recordkeeping and tips regulations, plus other important labor standards issues.

 2. Subscribe to the Labor Standards Wage and Hour Bulletin at 
  dli.mn.gov/business/employment-practices/minnesota-wage-and-hour-bulletin.
 
 3. Contact us if you have any questions. DLI's Labor Standards staff is available from 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.,  
  Monday through Friday, at 651-284-5075 and dli.laborstandards@state.mn.us.

 4. Invite Labor Standards to meet with your company or business association. We meet with businesses,  
  nonprofits and others to explain Minnesota labor standards law.



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

rn~ DEPARTMENT OF 
11 LABOR AND INDUSTRY 

A guide to Minnesota's overtime laws 

STATE LAW 
The Minnesota Fair Labor Standards 
Act requires all employers, regardless 
of gross annual revenue, to pay 
overtime for all hours worked in 
excess of 48 hours in a seven-day 
period. 

FEDERAL LAW 
The federal Fair Labor Standards Act requires some 
employers to pay overtime for all hours worked in excess of 
40 hours in a seven-day period. These employers include: 
• businesses whose employees produce or handle goods 

for interstate commerce; 
• businesses with gross annual sales of more than 

$500,000; and 
• certain other businesses, including hospitals, nursing 

homes, schools and government agencies. 

WHAT IS THE OVERTIME RATE? 
Overtime rates must be at least one-and-a-half times the employee’s regular rate of pay. The regular rate 
of pay is determined by dividing the employee’s total pay in any workweek by the total hours worked in the 
workweek. An employee’s pay includes credits allowed against the minimum wage for meals and/or lodging. 

WHO MUST PAY? 
Overtime pay is not discretionary. Both state and federal 
laws prohibit any agreement to not pay overtime to 
employees. All firms must pay Minnesota’s overtime wage 
regardless of:
• the firm’s size, location or gross sales; 
• the method of compensation (hourly, salary, commission, 

piece rate or other); or 
• designations such as part time, temporary, seasonal or 

contract. 

WHAT IS A SALARY? 
A salary is defined as a guaranteed, predetermined wage 
for each seven-day workweek that does not vary based on 
productivity or how many hours the employee works. It is 
not an hourly rate. 

HOW ARE HOURS COUNTED? 

WHO IS EXEMPT? 
Some employees are exempt from Minnesota’s overtime 
wages. The following is a partial list:
• executive, administrative or professional employees who 

meet the salary and duty requirements of the department’s 
rules; 

• an outside salesperson; 
• a salesperson, partsperson or mechanic for a vehicle 

dealership who sells or services automobiles, trailers, 
trucks or farm implements, and is paid on a commission 
or incentive basis, and is employed by a dealer selling to 
the consumer; and 

• an agricultural worker paid a salary of at least $724.71 
a week for large employers grossing $500,000 a year or 
more, or $590.94 a week for small employers grossing 
less than $500,000 a year. 

Except for rest periods of 20 minutes or more, all hours the employee is required to be on the premises of the 
employer or performing work-related tasks are counted for overtime purposes. Employees working more than 
one job under the control of the same employer must have all hours worked counted toward overtime. 

Holiday hours, vacation time or sick leave are not counted in figuring overtime hours. Overtime is computed on a 
seven-day workweek basis regardless of the length of the pay period.  Hours worked may not be averaged over 
the pay period or used to offset shorter workweeks. The workweek can be any consecutive seven-day period that 
the employer chooses, but may not vary once chosen. 

Labor Standards • 443 Lafayette Road N. • St. Paul, MN  55155 
651-284-5075 • 800-342-5354 • 651-284-5099 (Spanish) • www.dli.mn.gov/laborlaw 

Notice:  This flyer is a brief summary of Minnesota law. It is intended as a guide and is not to be considered a substitute for Minnesota Statutes regarding overtime laws. 
Version 0319 

www.dli.mn.gov/laborlaw
Mandi Yoder
Highlight





[Type text] 
 

 
September 2023 

 
During the month of September, 2023 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office contract cars responded to or initiated 
467 calls for service within the City of Mora. The most frequent calls for service were Traffic 
complaints/violations (95), Medical Emergencies (74), and suspicious persons/occurrences (24).  
 
 
Deputies logged 36 foot patrols in the downtown business district and city parks. 
 
 
A speed radar trailer was placed on East Maple Ave to combat recent traffic complaints. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office continues to proudly serve the citizens of Mora within Kanabec County. 
The Sheriff’s Office encourages any and all community members to contact our office with any questions, 
comments, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sergeant Dylan VanGorden  #3104 
 
 





Printed On: 10/12/23 09:29CAD Summary Report

Kanabec County Sheriff's Office

09/23 Total

911 Hang-ups-Abandoned-Open 
Line

12 12

Agency Assist 20 20

Alarms All (Home, Business, Bank, 
misc)

5 5

Animal-All Other 5 5

Assault 4 4

Burglary 1 1

Child Custody Issues 1 1

Civil Assist 2 2

Crim Sex 2 2

Disorderly Conduct 6 6

Domestic Disturbance/Assaults 5 5

Drug calls - All 2 2

DTP 5 5

Escorts-Funerals, Races, etc 4 4

Fire- Mora Area Fire Calls 2 2

Fires - All Others 3 3

Foot Patrol 36 36

Found - animals, property, etc 4 4

Guns including permits 1 1

Harassing communications calls 3 3

Health and Safety 1 1

Hospice Deaths 2 2

Information and misc calls 19 19

Juvenile calls excluding tobacco, 
drugs, alcohol

10 10

Maltreatment 8 8

Medical Emergency 74 74

Missing Person(s) 2 2

Mora Ordinance Violations 1 1

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 1 of 2



Printed On: 10/12/23 09:29CAD Summary Report

09/23 Total

Neighborhood Disputes 3 3

Noise - including loud music, parties, 
etc

5 5

Parking Violations 1 1

POR- Predatory Offender calls 21 21

Public assist calls 7 7

Records checks 5 5

Recovered- property and vehicles 1 1

Road Hazards 1 1

Secure Helipad 10 10

Shooting complaints 2 2

Suicide threats-attempts 4 4

Suspicious- persons, vehicles, and 
occurrences

24 24

Theft-not vehicle 12 12

Threats 4 4

Traffic / Driving complaints 17 17

Traffic Accident 3 3

Traffic Violation 78 78

Unwanted person 3 3

Vandalism exc mailboxes 1 1

Violation of Court Order 2 2

Warrant Entry and Arrests 4 4

Weather - Monthly Test 1 1

Welfare Check 18 18

Total 467 467

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 2 of 2



City of Mora Planning Commission 
Minutes 

5:30 p.m. Monday, October 2, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St, Mora, MN 55051 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Sheldon Shepard called to order the regular meeting of 
the Planning Commission at 5:35 p.m. Monday, October 2, 2023, in the Mora City Hall council 
chambers.  

2. Roll call:  
Commissioners present: Sheldon Shepard, Tim Dahlberg, Jody Anderson and Lance Strande 
Commissioners absent: Sara Treiber 
Staff present: City Administrator Glenn Anderson, Community Development Director Kirsten 
Faurie 

3. Adopt Amended Agenda: MOTION made by Dahlberg, seconded by Strande and 
unanimously carried to adopt the agenda as presented.  

4. Approval of Minutes: MOTION made by J. Anderson, seconded by Dahlberg and 
unanimously carried to approve the Sept. 11, 2023 minutes as presented. 

5. Open Forum: No one spoke during open forum 

6. Old Business: J. Anderson asked for an update on Maple Avenue East’s commercial truck 
traffic. G. Anderson reported that “TRUCK ROUTE” signs have been placed, directing trucks 
away from Maple Avenue East. Staff has not heard any complaints from the street’s 
residents since the September 19 City Council meeting.  

7. Public Hearings:  

a. Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Request for solar system at 413 Cardinal St. 
Shepard opened the public hearing at 5:38 p.m. Faurie presented the CUP request 
by Solcius (applicant) and Robert Gilbert (property owner) to allow a Solar Energy 
System to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District. Faurie noted that 
this solar array was smaller than similar ones recently approved by the Planning 
Commission. Staff had no concerns about the project; a nearby property owner had 
submitted a letter in support of the project. The Planning Commission members 
expressed no concerns for the project. Shepard closed the public hearing at 5:42p.m. 

i. MOTION by J. Anderson to approve Resolution # PC 2023-0911, seconded by 
Dahlberg and unanimously carried. 

8. Other Business:  

a. Preliminary discussion regarding dog training facility In the B-1 District: Faurie 
explained that a new dog-training business is interested in opening in the B-1 
District. The City’s ordinances contain guidance for pet shops, pet grooming, 
veterinarian clinics and kennels, but not specifically for dog training. Faurie asked for 
direction regarding how the Planning Commission would prefer a possible ordinance 
change to include dog training services in the B-1 District. After discussion, the 
consensus of the commission was they would prefer dog-training to be added to B-1 



City of Mora Planning Commission 
Minutes 

5:30 p.m. Monday, October 2, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St, Mora, MN 55051 

 
permitted uses if it did not include overnight stays; if training included overnight 
stays it should be a conditional use. The commission encouraged Faurie to do 
additional research regarding the number of animals served, and how other cities 
manage noise and odor issues of pet-related businesses.  

b. Preliminary discussion regarding former Mora High School site Faurie explained that 
the former Mora High School at 400 Maple Ave. East will soon be demolished and 
the school district intends to sell the land. Faurie has had some preliminary 
discussions with the school board and is proposing they attempt to sell the site 
through a Request for Proposal process. While the decision on who to sell the land 
to is ultimately up to the school board, Faurie is willing to assist the school in 
marketing the site in the hopes of securing interest from a quality developer and 
guiding a coordinated, unified housing development. In marketing the site, Faurie 
asked if the Planning Commission would consider some flexibility in use of the site. 
The site is currently zoned R-1 Single-Family Residential District and R-3 Multiple 
Dwelling District. The Commission noted that the priority for the area is housing, but 
indicated it would consider proposals for commercial development on some 
portions of the land.  

The Commission further discussed the effects of the new high school addition on 9th 
Street. J. Anderson noted that the school’s athletic tournaments seem to be bringing 
more customers to downtown businesses.  

9. Reports: Faurie reported she anticipates a number of projects to be on the agenda of the 
November 13 Planning Commission meetings, so please plan to attend. Faurie has started 
conversations with the City Attorney regarding a review of city ordinances when the 
Planning Commission has little other business. Faurie also announced that a property 
developer has expressed serious interest in the vacant city lot in downtown Mora known as 
the Downtown Commercial Corner or former Feed Mill site. The developer will be bringing 
his proposal to the Mora EDA at their Nov. 7 meeting.  

10. Adjournment: MOTION to adjourn by Dahlberg, seconded by Strande, and unanimously 
carried to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 6:14 p.m. The next regular meeting 
of the Planning Commission is scheduled for 5:30 p.m. Monday, November 13, 2023. 

 

 

_________________________                                 Attest: _________________________ 

Commission Chair                                                                      Kirsten Faurie 
                Community Development Director 


	10172023 CC Agenda Packet updated
	10172023 Agenda City Council
	City of Mora Kanabec County, Minnesota

	item 4a - 09192023 CC Meeting Minutes
	item 4b - September - October 2023 City Claims List
	item 4c - 1 Special Event Permit Dala Dazzle
	item 4c - 2 Special Event Permit Dala Dazzle
	Item 4e   - Offer of Employment - Jeffrey Quale
	item 4e - 1 Staff Report Accept Donations
	item 4e - 2 Res 2023-1021 Accepting Restricted Donations
	item 4f - 1  Memo- council HEO J Quale  2023 oct
	item 4g - 1 CUP 413 Cardinal St Solar Energy System - CC staff report
	item 4g - 2 CUP 413 Cardinal St Solar Enegy System - Site Plan
	item 4g - 3 CUP 413 Cardinal St Solar Energy System - CC Res. 2023-1022
	Item 4h - 1 Staff Memo Family Dollar
	item 4h - Family Dollar Business License
	Item 6a - 1 Staff Memo Fire Relief Audit UPdate
	item 8a - 1 Memo- Taxilane Pay app 1 douglas kerr oct 2023
	item 8a - 2 JMR Taxilanes_Pay App 1_Signed
	item 8b - 2 OSS VOTER Account Overview 7.21.23
	Voting Operations, Technology, & Election Resources (VOTER) Account
	Section A. VOTER Account Overview
	Section B.  VOTER Account Allocations by County
	Section C. Example Allocation According to the Default Formula with Partial Agreement

	item 8b - 3 VOTER Precinct Allocation 2023
	item 8b- 1 VOTER Resolution to KC
	item 8b-3 Resolution VOTER Acct Agreement with Twp_Cities
	item 9a - 2 ACM Pay Request #2
	item 9a - Project Update Memo 9th Street Turn Lane
	Item 9C - 1 Staff Memo Dual Roles FLSA and Wage Theft
	Item 9C - 2 Wage Theft MNDOLI
	Item 9C - 3 FLSA overtime
	item 10a - September report 2023
	item 10a - September totals 2023
	item 10b - 10022023 PC Minutes DRAFT
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	09192023 Resolutions
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



